
URN Status Question Text Response Text Date

1 Responded Section 3.1.2 of the ITT refers to a contract supplied at Annex 

1, but there is no attachment at Annex 1; rather Annex 1 

states ‘please include your terms and conditions with your 

response’. Please can you clarify whether PIDG will supply a 

contract for us to submit concerns or queries on (as per 3.1.4), 

or if we should send our own terms and conditions to PIDG as 

requested in Annex 1?

A template contract will be provided to shortlist 

candidates. 

04/07/2019

2 Responded Are two separate Tender Responses required when bidding 

for two separate lots under this ITT, or should they be 

combined into a single response of no more than 15 pages?

You should provide a Tender Response for each Lot you 

are bidding for. 

04/07/2019

3 Responded Is it acceptable to submit a Tender Response as a separate 

Word document (which can be referred to via a note in the 

Tender Response box) or is the full response required to be 

typed straight into the Tender Response box as per the format 

in the ITT? If we attached the Tender Response as a separate 

word document we would of course still follow the required 

evaluation criteria as listed in the ITT.

You should use the word document supplied for your 

responses. 

04/07/2019

4 Responded Does the 15 page word limit include the requested sample 

report or can this be additional to the 15 pages maximum?

No. The sample report is not included in the 15 page 

maximum. 

04/07/2019

Responses to Clarification Questions



5 Responded There is a reference to ‘Alcatel ends’ under the Timescales 

Section 9, page 9. Please can you clarify what this means?

Alcatel is also known as the standastill period. The 

standstill period provides for a short (at least 10 calendar 

day) pause between the point when the contract award 

decision is notified to bidders, and the final contract 

conclusionn. The purpose is that for contracts subject to 

the EU procurement directives, a contract award 

decision must be open to review before contract 

conclusion.It is a legal requirement imposed through the 

remedies directives.

04/07/2019

6 Responded Please can you clarify the sentence on  price assumptions 

within Section 12.3. We understand this to mean that our 

standard price quoted per subject company should not be 

subject to any variation, even if the number of principals 

involved is significantly different, please can you confirm if 

this is the case?

Correct. There should not be a variation to the price per 

subject/company. We understand that there will be 

instances where the number of subkects is greater than 

the number included in the Costs Table. In this siuation, 

we would expect the cost be greater but to mirror the 

Cost Table in relation to the discount applied. 

04/07/2019

7 Responded For the cost exercise, please clarify the level of detail 

required. Is it sufficient to provide a breakdown of resourcing 

(tasks, hours/days, rates, etc.) or do you require a full mocked-

up proposal and explanation of the analytical approach? 

A breakdown is sufficient. 04/07/2019

8 Responded Section 3.2: Are bidders expected to submit their technical 

(capability) and financial (price) offers in separate documents 

or a single document?  If they should be submitted in separate 

documents, should those documents also be submitted under 

separate cover or should they be submitted together?

For the Costs Exercise you are not required to submit a 

full proposal as we note that much of this will be 

repeated within the Supplier Response. A breakdown of 

the resourcing (tasks, hours/days, rates, etc.) is 

sufficient.

09/07/2019



9 Responded Annex 3 (pricing approach) says that we are to use the table 

within the Response Document alongside any supporting 

commentary or documentation. Are you expecting us to 

provide costs for each of the eligible countries in the list for 

Africa? 

Yes. Please provide costs for each eligible country as 

provided in the Annexes. 

09/07/2019

10 Responded Sub-section 12.3 Is there any more detail on the definition of 

the “Overall Price” (see paragraph 12.3 of the ITT)?  Does this 

have a special meaning – for example, does this refer to the 

aggregate of all the prices we give against the Cost Exercise 

and/or the Cost Table for each eligible country? 

This only related to the information requested for Annex 

3 - Pricing Approach which includes the Costs Table. The 

cost exercise will be scored separately. 

09/07/2019

11 Responded Cost Exercise: Is there a reason why Maryam Mohamed is 

named in both Africa and Asia / Levant examples, but is not 

included in the subject list? Likewise, "XYZ Limited" does not 

appear to be connected to the project at all and yet is named 

in one of the examples.

She would be included in the checks on the shareholders 

of the company. 

In the background information on the project XYZ 

Limited is named as one of the developers of the project. 

09/07/2019

12 Responded Pre-employment screening: In jurisdictions where criminal 

checks require the consent of (and/or actions taken by) the 

subject in order to complete, do you expect the Supplier to 

manage this work? 

This will be decided on a case by case basis. 09/07/2019

13 Responded Pre-employment screening: Do you expect the references and 

enquiries to be discreet (i.e. that the subject is not aware)? 

Typically, we have found a combination of interviewing 

named referees and inviting the subject to grant permission 

for wider enquiries has delivered the most useful and 

accurate results.

The relevant PIDG Company will undertake the reference 

checks itself. The checks undertaken for this exercise 

should be discreet. 

09/07/2019

14 Responded What is your volume of annual new hires that will require 

screening

11/07/2019This is unknown at this stage and will depend upon the 

business need and staff turnover. 



15 Responded Please provide a breakdown of volume of hires per hiring 

location (country). This is key as each country has different 

legislation and certain components (financial stability, criminal 

records, or directorship checks) may not be available

11/07/2019

16 Responded Do you conduct any ongoing monitoring such as annual 

rechecking or financial stability and criminal records. If so 

what components does this include and against what volume 

of your employee population

This is conducted internally. 11/07/2019

17 Responded Do you have a staggered approach to screening with the 

adoption of multiple screening levels which very according to 

the amount of risk a role my entail or does everyone go 

through one flat level of screening

Only senior hires will be screened. 11/07/2019

18 Responded Are there any specific system language requirements for 

client and candidate portals. As standard Vero offer our 

portals in English language, however other may be available

Reports should be provided in English but searches may 

be required in other languages based on the location of 

the subject. 

11/07/2019

19 Responded Do you require an integration with an ATS or HRMS system No.  11/07/2019

20 Responded Section 12.2 on page 11 of the ITT states that ‘An example 

report (see list from RFP)’ should be sent.  Does this passage 

mean that we should send example reports from all of the 

countries listed in annexes 4 and 5 on page 13 of the ITT or is 

a different list being referred to?  

One example report per Lot is sufficient. 11/07/2019

21 Responded In addition, as the reports you require for the separate lots for 

pre-employment screening, Africa and Asia/Levant will be 

quite different, we would like to send you three redacted 

reports, in order to better demonstrate our specific 

capabilities and experience, appropriate for each distinct set 

of circumstances.  Would this be ok?

You should provide a Tender Response (and associated 

documentation) for each Lot you are bidding for. Each 

Lot with be scored separately. 

11/07/2019

This is unknown at this stage and will depend upon the 

business need and staff turnover. 



22 Responded As per section 10.2 on page 10 of the ITT, are we right to 

assume that sample reports are in addition to the 15-page 

tenderer’s response?

Correct.  11/07/2019

23 Responded In section 12.2 of the ITT it is mentioned that we should rate 

our ‘experience/resourcing in each Eligible Country as low, 

medium or high (including an approximate number of reports 

you have carried out in each country)’ and that ‘we should 

complete the following table (giving a single figure rather than 

a range, if possible), which will give an indication of fees for a 

project in each Eligible Country based upon the number of 

Primary Subject Companies, principals within such companies 

and partner companies’.  Is ‘the following table’ the one 

displayed in section 3.1 of the TRD?  

Yes. We have not provided a template table in respect of 

the experience/resourcing ratings. 

11/07/2019

24 Responded Would you like us to provide two separate 83-country lists, 

one for country capabilities and experience, the other for 

costs for reports in each individual country, or one combined 

list?  

Yes. You are required to provide confirmation of your 

experience and costs in each of the Eligible Countries 

within each Lot you are applying for. 

11/07/2019

25 Responded Can I confirm that the passages from section 12.2 of the ITT, 

asking us to show the ‘capped fee quote for each report’ and 

‘confirm the fee discount’, that the discount refers to the 

table in section 3.1 of the TRD and the greater number of 

subjects per report?  Or does this refer to a potential discount 

we could offer more generally throughout the contract?  

Yes. You should also provide information about the fee 

discount generally. 

11/07/2019

26 Responded As it is mentioned in section 2.1 of the ITT that the ‘number of 

reports per year varies between the PIDG Companies’, could 

you provide us with an estimated number of reports that 

would be required on an annual basis, in order to be more 

specific about a potential discount?

This will vary across the Lots and the PIDG Companies. It 

will be based on the business needs of each PIDG 

Company. 

11/07/2019



27 Responded For the three mock exercises set out in the TRD, do you simply 

require a fee quote or would you like us to provide additional 

details and example reports that address similar issues?  

A breakdown is sufficient. 11/07/2019

28 Responded In annexes 4 and 5 on page 13 of the ITT, what are the reasons 

for differences in font or colour of the country names? 

There is no reason, this is the table style. 11/07/2019

29 Responded The ITT notes that the volume of reports is variable. For each 

of the three panels, could you provide either an anticipated 

approximate volume of reports per year, or historical data for 

the last 2-3 years? This will assist us in pricing and assessing 

potential volume discounts.

This is based on the business needs of each PIDG 

Company and cannot be confirmed. 

11/07/2019

30 Responded In addition, for the pre-investment panels, can you provide an 

estimate of how many individuals are typically included with a 

company on average, and, if possible, the average number of 

jurisdictions a typical pre-investment covers?

This varies according to the project. Some will only have 

one project partner whereas others will have multiple. 

See the Cost Exercise for an example. 

11/07/2019

31 Responded Annex 1 is not embedded in the ITT document. Will PIDG be 

providing a set of Terms and Conditions for the Contract or 

will PIDG consider the Candidate's standard Terms and 

Conditions as applicable to the contract? If the latter, how will 

the Terms and Conditions be evaluated and what impact do 

they

A template contract will be provided to 

shortlisted candidates. 

11/07/2019

32 Responded We are not aware of having completed a pre-qualification 

questionnaire for this tender. Is this required? If so, could you 

please provide us with the questionnaire. 

No pre-qualification questionnaire has been provided. 11/07/2019



33 Responded The ITT notes, "Documents that must be submitted to form 

your tender response are listed at Part 2 of Annex 2." The 

referenced section of Annex 2 does not specify that any 

particular documents be submitted besides a respondent's 

free-form proposal. Could you please confirm that this is 

correct.

11/07/2019

34 Responded The ITT states that no additional supporting documentation 

should be submitted except where specifically requested. 

Could you please provide a list of additional documentation 

which is required?

11/07/2019

35 Responded The "Reports" section in the first chart in this section notes 

"an example report" is required and references a list in the 

RFP. We did not see an example report referenced elsewhere 

in the ITT. Can you clarify what is required?

We have requested a copy of a previous report that you 

have prepared. We note that parts of this report may 

need to be redacted to protect confidentiality. 

11/07/2019

36 Responded The first chart (fourth line) notes, "Please can you complete 

the following table (giving a single figure rather than a range, 

if possible), which will give an indication of fees for a project 

in each Eligible Country…" Can you please clarify which table 

this is referring to, as there is no blank table included in this 

section?

See paragraph 3 of the Tender Response Document. 11/07/2019

37 Responded The first chart (fourth line) asks for a quote "based upon the 

number of Primary Subject Companies, principals within such 

companies and partner companies  (i.e. those with which a 

PIDG Company would be associated but not providing any 

funding to)." Can you clarify how these "partner companies" 

are defined and what the expectations are in terms of 

research into these? This does not appear to be addressed in 

Section 7B, which discusses research into subject companies 

and principals only.

This will vary between projects and PIDG Companies but 

generally checks will need to be undertaken on partner 

companies up to and including the ultimate beneficial 

owners. 

11/07/2019

Annex 2 is the tender response document for your 

responses. It also requests that the costs exercise is 

included separately. Pursuant to 12.2, you are required 

to provide the following additional supporting 

documents with the tender response document: 

- an example report; and 

- Costs Exercise. 



38 Responded We note that the table included in Annex 3  lists only 

companies, and does not take into account the number of 

individual principals associated with a subject company. Can 

we modify the table to provide variable pricing depending on 

the total number of individuals and entities included in a 

particular research assignment, or do you require a single 

quote regardless of the number of subjects?

Fine for the table to read Primary Subject/Company. No 

further changes should be made to the table. 

11/07/2019

39 Responded Are all the Pre-employment checks to be done with 

permission?

This will be decided on a case by case basis. 12/07/2019

40 Responded How many checks per country? This is unknown at this stage and will depend upon the 

business need and staff turnover. 

12/07/2019

41 Responded Regarding Education checks, are you wanting both college 

results and University, per person?

Yes. 12/07/2019

42 Responded What is your interpretation of ”Public registers to be checked” 

and can this be done abroad?

This varies according to the country which is why a broad 

term is being used. 

12/07/2019

43 Responded It is not standard for us to give a reason for the candidate to 

be suitable normally, what do you specifically require from us 

on this point?

We are looking for your opinion on the suitability of the 

candidate and if anything else identified in your 

investigation should be brought to our attention. 

12/07/2019

44 Responded Timings – 2 weeks is fine for most of the checks most of the 

time, but there could be problems with the timescale if the 

education departments are out of term times. Also DBS 

checks can take longer.

Please include in your response to the ITT. 12/07/2019

45 Responded We are able to do Court checks all over the world and these 

will list all appearances in a court whether found guilty or not, 

these can be done instead of DBS checks or as well especially 

as these can be done in an expedited time. Would this be 

more suitable?

Please note in your response to the ITT and this will be 

considered as part of the review of all proposals. 

12/07/2019

46 Responded How soon do you wish the project to begin? See timetable as provided in the ITT. 12/07/2019

47 Responded Have you been undertaking these checks in these areas 

currently?

Yes.  12/07/2019



48 Responded Given our confidentiality commitments to all clients which is 

absolute, it is problematic for us to provide copies of past 

reports.  This may also be problematic in terms of current 

GDPR restrictions.In these circumstances and in order to 

protect our clients,  we normally provide detailed report 

headings of the subjects that we routinely investigate during a 

typical due diligence in lieu of actual reports. Would this 

suffice?

We note that the report may have to be redacted in 

places. However, 25% of the scoring is from the example 

report so "detailed report headings" may not provide 

sufficient information. 

12/07/2019

49 Responded How many reports were requested last year for (a) pre-

employment screening and (b) Africa Panel and Asia/Levant 

Panels? Is the number expected to be consistent going 

forward?

This is a new PIDG Panel so we are unable to confirm 

how many reports were requested within the last year. 

The number of reports each year will depend on the 

business needs and turnover of each PIDG Company. 

12/07/2019

50 Responded Overt or covert: where the ITT states “Professional and 

personal background checks”, will PIDG be providing service 

providers with a list of referees to contact in the course of 

overt enquiries, or does the requirement refer to 

discreet/covert enquiries?

This will vary between PIDG Companies but PIDG 

Companies will generally undertake reference checks 

themselves. It is expected that this will relate to 

discreet/covert enquiries only. 

12/07/2019

51 Responded Political exposure: does political exposure extend beyond PEP 

database checks?

Yes. This should also include political connections. 12/07/2019

52 Responded What type of documents will be provided to conduct the 

screening, e.g. resume, ID? 

Generally, this will include ID and resume if this 

information has been received by the PIDG Company. 

12/07/2019

53 Responded Will the screening be conducted with the explicit consent of 

the candidate? Will PIDG be responsible for obtaining 

candidates’ consent? Will the consultant be provided with a 

copy of the consent letter?

This will be decided on a case by case basis. 12/07/2019

54 Responded Would it be acceptable to caveat that these are obtained only 

where available, i.e. there are countries in which the person 

must apply in person, or where they are simply not readily 

available.

Please include in your response to the ITT and a decision 

will be made. 

12/07/2019



55 Responded Would it be acceptable to add a caveat that the full 

completion of the scope of work would be subject to the 

timing of obtaining criminal records checks (where available), 

which timing can vary and is frequently longer than 2 weeks

Please include in your response to the ITT and a decision 

will be made. 

12/07/2019

56 Responded Please elaborate on your expectations for these checks ie. 

what does PIDG define as public registers. 

This varies according to the country which is why a broad 

term is being used. 

12/07/2019

57 Responded Is there any flexibility on the two-week timeframe for delivery 

of reports? The breadth of source enquiries within that 

timeframe may be limited.

This will vary on the report. 12/07/2019

58 Responded For certain countries, conducting enquiries within such a short 

timeframe will negatively impact the quality of information 

we can gather. Would it be acceptable to provide a list of 

countries for which we require longer turnaround times 

(another week)?

Please include in your response to the ITT and a decision 

will be made. 

12/07/2019

59 Responded Regarding section 3.3, subsection 3.3.2 of the ITT, what does 

“all necessary actions to verify the information that you have 

provided” entail? Will the consultant be required, for 

example, to disclose or grant access to any internal 

documents or communications? 

This will be decided on a case by case basis. 12/07/2019

60 Responded Regarding section 7 (Specification), subsection B (Africa Panel 

and Asia/Levant Panels, where is states “If there is any other 

reasons why we should not invest in the project”, is PIDG 

looking for service providers to make an explicit assessment 

on the investment decision, based on the findings of its 

enquiries and research?

We are not looking for a supplier to provide an 

investment decision but note if any thing else came up 

as part of the investigation which should be brought to 

the attention of the PIDG Company and any 

recommendations that the supplier may have to mitigate 

the risks identified. 

12/07/2019


